

Student Society Of Health System Pharmacists

Student Organization Constitution

ARTICLE I. NAME OF ORGANIZATION

Student Society Of Health System Pharmacists at The Ohio State University

ARTICLE II. ORGANIZATION PURPOSE

To make students aware of the areas in pharmacy practice in health care settings. Encourage proper use of medicines in the general public. Encourage members to participate in the activities of the local, state, and national organizations of health-system pharmacists both while in pharmacy school and beyond graduation. Promote participation in service activities throughout the community and encourage student participation in professional development activities.

ARTICLE III. UNIVERSITY REGULATIONS

Section A. Harassment and Discrimination, including Sexual Misconduct

The Ohio State University Student Society Of Health System Pharmacists *agrees that it will not engage in sexual misconduct nor any harassment or discrimination on the basis of age, ancestry, color, disability, gender identity or expression, genetic information, HIV/AIDS status, military status, national origin, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, protected veteran status or any other basis in accordance with the Student Organization Registration Guidelines.*

Section B. Hazing

The Ohio State University Student Society Of Health System Pharmacists *agrees to maintain a zero-tolerance policy for hazing, in compliance with Ohio State University and Collin's Law. All members must conduct themselves in a manner that supports an environment free from hazing. Hazing includes any activity, regardless of consent, that causes or creates a substantial risk of physical, mental, or emotional harm or humiliation to any individual as part of membership or affiliation with the student organization. If found responsible for hazing, members and/or the organization may face disciplinary actions.*

Section C. Bylaws

The Ohio State University Student Society Of Health System Pharmacists *retains the right to maintain separate bylaws to outline the day-to-day operations of the organization and to clarify policies and procedures otherwise not included in the previous articles. Bylaws and/or other guiding documents may not take precedence over the requirements set forth by local, state, and federal laws, The Ohio State University's regulations, policies, and procedures, and the Council on Student Affairs (CSA) Student Organization Registration Guidelines. Organizations may make amendments and changes to the bylaws without consulting the Ohio Union & Student Activities department, and changes to bylaws do not require approval. All elements*

of organizational bylaws shall be consistent with the organization's currently approved constitution on file and CSA constitution requirements.

ARTICLE IV. MEMBERSHIP

Section A. Membership Eligibility

The membership of the SSHP shall consist of students enrolled in the Doctor of Pharmacy program at The Ohio State University and in good academic standing. The applicant must submit an application, pay the required dues, and support the mission of SSHP. Membership in SSHP shall include student membership in the Ohio Society of Health-System Pharmacists (OSHP) and the American Society of Health-System Pharmacists (ASHP) and may include the Central Ohio Society of Health-System Pharmacists (COSHP).

Section B. Member Selection

Students that actively enrolled in the Doctor of Pharmacy program at The Ohio State University and are in good academic standing are eligible to be members of the organization. Members only need to meet this criteria, no further selection is required.

Section C. Membership Timeline

A membership will be active for 1 year following the submitted application. This membership can be renewed annually by submitting a new application. Eligibility for renewal of membership shall terminate upon the member's graduation or withdrawal from the College of Pharmacy.

Section D. Member Removal

Two members will submit in writing a formal complaint to the Secretary or the President if the Secretary is involved in the situation. A copy of the letter will be distributed immediately to the executive board for review. At the next scheduled executive meeting, the general body member in question will be allowed a defense before the executive board. A vote will be taken at the executive board meeting on the impeachment. A two-thirds vote by the executive board is required to remove the officer in question. A quorum of six members is required for voting on impeachment.

ARTICLE V. ADVISOR

Section A. Advisor Duties and Responsibilities

The Advisor shall serve as a resource to the Executive Committee, and meet monthly with the President and President-Elect. The Faculty Advisor shall attend training through The Ohio State University every two years as required. The advisor shall be a Pharmacy Practice and Administration faculty member who actively teaches institutional or clinical

pharmacy classes or rotations. The advisor will be active in local, state, and national institutional pharmacy organizations. His/her responsibilities include the provision of advice and guidance to SSHP regarding progress, activities, and general operation; serving as an interface between SSHP, college administration, and other faculty members; and a willingness to attend and participate in both Executive Committee and general body meetings.

Section B. Advisor Term

An advisor shall serve a three-year term, which may be renewed in three-year increments by a simple majority vote of the Executive Board, as needed.

Section C. Advisor Selection

Advisors shall be selected upon the recommendation of the current advisor and confirmed by a majority vote of the Executive Board.

Section D. Advisor Replacement

In the event that an advisor or co-advisor must be replaced before the conclusion of their term, the current advisor shall collaborate with the Executive Board to identify a suitable replacement. The appointed advisor shall serve for the remainder of the previous advisor's term. Upon completion of that term, the advisor may be considered for additional three-year terms, subject to approval by a majority vote of the Executive Board.

ARTICLE VI. ORGANIZATION LEADERSHIP

Section A. Officer Positions

1. President.

- a. The President shall act as the principal office of the Executive Committee. He/She shall preside over all business meetings.
- b. The President shall be the elected representative for SSHP, the Student Liaison recognized by the ASHP Student Forum, the organization's representative to the Pharmacy Council, and the legislative representative to COSHP, OSHP and ASHP as needed.
- c. The President shall attend training through The Ohio State University as required after assuming office in the fall.
- d. The President, in concert with the Executive Committee, shall be responsible for setting organizational goals, directions, and policy.
- e. The President is responsible for organizing the Clinical Skills Competition in addition to overseeing all chapter events and meetings.

2. President-Elect.

- a. The President-Elect shall be elected by SSHP members from rising P2 members.
- b. The President-Elect shall assist the President in SSHP-related activities.
- c. The President-Elect, at the end of their term during their P2 year, shall assume the duties of the President for their P3 year.
- d. The President-Elect is responsible for organizing the Practice Clinical Skills Competition, running the P1 Liaison and executive board elections, overseeing PAI week in February, and annual review of organizational by-laws.

3. Vice-President.
 - a. The Vice-President shall be elected by SSHP members.
 - b. The Vice-President shall maintain accurate membership records, oversee recruitment and record participation for graduation cords.
 - c. The Vice-President is responsible for organizing the Spring and Fall Membership Drives, as well as assisting with Mock Residency Interviews and Residency 101 events.
4. Treasurer.
 - a. The Treasurer shall maintain an accurate record of the SSHP income and expenditures, including a budget proposal for all SSHP expenses and fundraisers
 - b. Signatures of the Treasurer and the Treasurer-elect are required on the SSHP bank account.
 - c. The Treasurer shall submit the necessary materials to the College of Pharmacy to receive organization reimbursement for subsidizing member registration fees for the ASHP Midyear Clinical Meeting. This includes tracking the completion of requirements for reimbursement by all SSHP members throughout the year.
 - d. The Treasurer shall apply for funding through The Ohio State University or other resources as needed or available.
 - e. The Treasurer shall attend training through The Ohio State University as required after assuming office in the fall.
 - f. The Treasurer shall assist in all fundraisers organized by the Treasurer-Elect and Fundraising Chair.
5. Treasurer-Elect.
 - a. The Treasurer-Elect shall be elected by SSHP members from rising P2 members.
 - b. The Treasurer-Elect shall assist the Treasurer with financial activities related to SSHP.
 - c. Signatures of the Treasurer and the Treasurer-elect are required on the SSHP bank account.
 - d. The Treasurer-Elect, at the end of their term during their P2 year, shall assume the duties of the Treasurer for their P3 year.
 - e. The Treasurer-Elect is responsible for organizing a minimum of 3 fundraisers each year, including but not limited to: a fall fundraiser, a spring fundraiser, and an additional charitable fundraiser.
6. Secretary.
 - a. The Secretary shall be elected by SSHP members.
 - b. The Secretary shall maintain the SSHP website, Facebook page, and Instagram as well as the weekly PharmD and monthly SSHP newsletter communications.
 - d. The Secretary is responsible for constructing an Alumni Newsletter that will be sent out annually in January.
 - e. The Secretary is responsible for recording attendance at EBMs and notifying the President and/or President-Elect of any potential attendance issues.
7. P1 Class Liaison(s).
 - a. The P1 Class Liaison(s) shall be elected by the Executive Committee to serve as a liaison between SSHP and the P1 class. The Executive Committee will make this appointment by October 15th.
 - b. The P1 Liaison(s) is responsible for organizing the PAI Roundtable Event in February, in addition to any additional programming geared toward P1s and P2s, if desired.
8. Ex Officio Members.
 - a. . Programming Director(s).
 - i. The Directors of Programming shall be elected by SSHP members.
 - ii. The Programming Director(s), working in concert with the Executive Committee, shall be responsible for contacting and scheduling speakers at all general body meetings, including ordering food and gifting thank-you card(s) to all speakers.
 - iii. The Programming Director(s) are also responsible for coordinating SSHP's representation at the Chili Cook-off.
 - b. OSHP/COSHP Representative.
 - i. The OSHP/COSHP Representative shall be elected by SSHP members.
 - ii. The OSHP/COSHP Representative shall serve as the representative for SSHP at all OSHP and COSHP meetings, including serving as the student liaison between SSHP and OSHP and COSHP.

iii. The OSHP/COSHP Representative is responsible for updating the Executive Committee on OSHP/COSHP business including current legislative and professional issues, promoting OSHP/COSHP events to the SSHP chapter, and attending the OSHP annual retreat and OSHP residency showcase.

c. Advocacy Chair

i. The Advocacy Chair shall be elected by SSHP members.

ii. The Advocacy Chair shall be responsible for all aspects of SSHP legislative education and advocacy efforts to achieve the goal of informing the student body about the legislative process and the importance of being an advocate for the profession.

iii. Responsibilities of the Advocacy Chair include organizing one event per semester and an additional event during PAI Week.

iv. The Advocacy Chair shall be responsible for participating in student legislative day.

d. Professional Development Director

i. The Profession Development Director shall be elected by SSHP members.

ii. The Professional Development Director shall be responsible for organizing the Mock Residency Interviews and Residency 101 events, as well as the informal resources related to Navigating Midyear and P4 Scramble Support, in addition to any professional development opportunities if desired.

e. Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s)

i. The Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s) shall be elected by SSHP members.

ii. The Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s) are responsible for scheduling volunteers and communicating necessary information to volunteers.

iii. The Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s) shall attend all meetings set forth by the Columbus Free Clinic.

iv. The Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s) shall ensure that there is a representative from the position at all volunteer dates.

v. It is the responsibility of the Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator, Coordinator-Elect, and Chair(s) to organize representation at the Columbus Free Clinic meetings and volunteer dates if they are unable to attend themselves.

vi. It is the responsibility of the Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator and Coordinator-Elect to create a Quality Improvement project and present this project at a future conference with the co-chairs.

vii. It is the responsibility of the Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator and Coordinator-Elect to set up meetings with advisors to help guide projects/goals/time frames.

Ex. Refrigerator/vaccines/EMRs

iii. The Columbus Free Clinic Coordinator and Coordinator-Elect are responsible for helping with transitioning and training the Columbus Free Clinic Chair(s).

g. Workforce Wellbeing and Resilience Chair

i. The Workforce Wellbeing and Resilience Chair shall be elected by SSHP members.

ii. The Workforce Wellbeing and Resilience Chair shall organize monthly wellness events open to the College of Pharmacy.

iii. The Workforce Wellbeing and Resilience Chair is responsible for planning the annual Welcome Back Social in the fall and the PAI Social in February in accordance with the Secretary.

iv. The Workforce Wellbeing and Resilience Chair shall communicate and advertise for all coordinated events.

h. Fundraising Chair

i. The Fundraising Chair shall be elected by the Executive Committee.

ii. The Fundraising Chair is responsible for assisting the Treasurer-Elect in all SSHP fundraisers throughout the year including the Fall, Spring, and Charitable fundraiser.

i. Ohio State Wexner Medical Center Mentorship Chair

i. The Ohio State Wexner Medical Center Mentorship Chair shall be elected by SSHP members.

- ii. The Ohio State Wexner Medical Center Mentorship Chair is responsible for overseeing the mentorship program.
- iii. The Ohio State Wexner Medical Center Mentorship Chair is responsible for setting up quarterly events for the participants in the mentorship program.

Section B. Officer Eligibility

Any active SSHP member is eligible for elected office and may nominate any active member or nominate themselves prior to or during the meeting in which the election is held. Members are considered active if they will be paid SSHP members during the academic year in which they are running for office.

Section C. Officer Selection Process

- A. Elections shall be held during the months of March or April, prior to the end of the academic year.
- B. Candidates are strongly urged to be present at elections.
- C. A majority vote is needed for elections from active members. For an election to be valid, at least ten active members must be present and participate in the elections. In the event of a tie, the top two candidates will participate in a run-off.
- D. Candidates should not physically influence the outcome of elections to non-active members, and the honor code is in effect according to the OSU College of Pharmacy's policy.
- E. Elections may be held either by paper ballot or by electronic voting means.
- F. All votes, whether by paper or electronic means, must be confirmed valid (only active SSHP members) according to the executive board members running the election.
- G. Term of office shall begin on the last day of the Spring semester and run through the last day of the following Spring semester.
- H. Should an elected officer be unable to carry out his or her duty regardless of circumstances, or if a position is filled vacant after elections, the President shall select a replacement, with his or her permission, to fill the vacant office and present the candidate to the current eBoard for approval. A two-thirds vote by the eBoard is necessary to approve the appointment. This appointment shall be communicated to the membership at once.

Section D. Officer Removal

1. Two members will submit in writing a formal complaint to the Secretary or the President if the Secretary is involved in the situation. A copy of the letter will be distributed immediately to the general membership for review.
2. At the next scheduled general meeting, the Executive Committee member in question will be allowed a defense before the general membership.
3. A vote will be taken at the following general body meeting on the impeachment. A two-thirds vote by the membership is required to remove the officer in question. A quorum of ten members is required for voting on impeachment.

ARTICLE VII. ORGANIZATION DISSOLUTION

Section A. Dissolution Requirements

The organization may be dissolved by a two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) vote of the active membership at a meeting with proper notice. Upon dissolution, all debts shall be paid, and any remaining assets shall be donated to a nonprofit organization with similar purposes, as determined by the membership. No member shall receive any personal benefit from the organization's assets.

Section B. Dissolution Procedures, including Assets and Debts

Any outstanding debts, remaining funds will be transferred to the treasury of the Ohio Society of Health-System Pharmacists.

ARTICLE VIII. CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS

Section A. Amendment Process

- A. The President and the President-Elect will review the by-laws annually and present any changes to the Executive Committee before the academic year.
- B. Additionally, two or more members may present any proposed by-laws changes at any time to the President and Secretary. The President and Secretary shall disseminate the proposed changes to the executive board, and schedule the changes as new business at a regularly scheduled meeting.
- C. A quorum of at least five members is necessary to vote on proposed by-laws changes. A two-thirds vote is necessary to approve the changes.
- D. Once approved by the vote, the amendment shall be adopted and take effect immediately.